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Gagnon - DNR, Nikie <nikie.gagnon@state.co.us>

Wertz Pit M2022-024 Adequacy Review Response Email #1 

Jodi Schreiber <jodi@arycorp.com> Mon, Aug 1, 2022 at 10:34 AM
To: "Gagnon - DNR, Nikie" <nikie.gagnon@state.co.us>

Good morning, Nikie.

 

Attached is the documentation for the Adequacy Review.

 

Please let me know if you need additional information on this permit application.

Thank you!

 

Jodi Schreiber

 

839 Mackenzie Ave., Canon City, CO 81212 

Office (719) 275-3264 | Mobile (719) 529-0916

jodi@arycorp.com

 

“Success is not final, failure is not fatal; it is the courage to continue that counts. ”

      –Winston Churchill

 

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Jodi Schreiber <jodi@arycorp.com> 
To: "'Houssin Hourieh'" <hhourieh@lamarlp.com> 
Cc:  
Bcc:  
Date: Wed, 30 Mar 2022 17:48:09 +0000 
Subject: RE: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit 

Good afternoon, Houssin,

 

We can definitely do that, but that is usually a very “Last resort” option, i.e. abandoned buildings, etc.  It is usually best to
ensure you all are comfortable with our plans. 

 

I’ll move forward with the engineering analysis unless I hear from you otherwise.

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.arycorp.com_&d=DwMFAg&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=BGTT-OhYxI2Lz7sbNE2B9zM9cnZPGeaRyvOhOTCoEj0&m=PuGeiAVFNkKn20Tv4dM2AD61AsCpHi81rBuupitQvlNR2RjP8maNLjCfnd21yNmy&s=-z8NnUgWMVDnjPO0s9cBBmpd_oPur4rQfRuFOd-CXOs&e=
https://www.google.com/maps/search/839+Mackenzie+Ave.,+Canon+City,+CO+81212+%0D%0A+Office+(719?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/839+Mackenzie+Ave.,+Canon+City,+CO+81212+%0D%0A+Office+(719?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/839+Mackenzie+Ave.,+Canon+City,+CO+81212+%0D%0A+Office+(719?entry=gmail&source=g
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CORPORATION
luly 28,2022

Colomdo Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety
Atfn: Nikie Gagnon
1313 Shernan Sfeet, Room 215
Denver, CO 80216

RE: Adequacy Review, Werrz pig hfiZ0ZZ-AZ4

Ms. Gagnon,

Thenk you for taking the time to visit the above-referenced site and sending the adequacy rcview. Attached and
belorry is the documentation requested.

The Application has been updated and is attached for review.
The Existing Conditions and Mining Map have been updated and are attached for review.
The narrative has been added and is attached for review.
The dimension ofthe access road haq been added and is attached for revierv.
Ths Mining Map has been updated to show the 25' offset.
The Mining Plan has been updated with the new owner and is attached for review.
The Water Information has been updated and is attached for review.
The Colorado Parks and wildlife letter detailing the game and non-game resources is attached for review.
A description of vegetation and carrying capacity was added to Exhibit J.
The overburden is estimated to be approximately 8 feet in depth. The stockpiles are estimated to have

50,000 tons.
Attached is the deed showing the recent sale of the properly.
Attached is the documentation from Houssin Hourieh from Lamar Light and Power stating that they
would prefer to have an engineer establish the buffer. All Rite Paving and Redi Mix askJd for their input
on this buffer and did not receive any such guidance. As such, we would request that the 25' buffer
remafu1 and we will continue to reach out to Lamar Light and Power to work with them on the sufficiency
of the buffer for maintenance purposes.

16. The 25' buffer will be completely around the each side of each power pole.
1?/l 8. Attached are the FedEx receipts showing that the Weftz's and Bent County Clerk and Recorder were

mailed the documentation as requested.

lf further information is needed, please feel free to contact me directly.

Thankyou,

jodi@arycorp.com

l.
2.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

t 1.

13.

14.
15.

A&S Construction Co.
Fremont Paving and Redi-Mix, lnc.
Ary Brothers Trucking, lnc.
All-Rite Paving & Redi-Mix, lnc.
Hard Rock Paving and Redi-Mix, lnc.

839 Mackenzie Ave.
Cafion City, CO 81212
7 L9.275.3264
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6.4.1 Exhibit A 

Legal Description 
The Wertz Pit is currently located 38° 05’58.32”N  103° 00’49.28”W.  The pit will be accessed 

through County Road JJ 3.25 miles west of Hasty in Bent County.  The site is approximately 

101.684 acres and is described by the following legal description: 

 

 

Location: Bent County, CO  NE SE33 T22S R50W 6th PM 

 

Entrance: 38° 5'58.50"N -103° 0'49.28"W 

 

Metes & Bounds: 

Beginning at the NE Corner S33 T22S R50W 6PM ; 

thence S 86°18'32" E a distance of 183.14'to the point of beginning; 

thence S 88°05'47" W a distance of 2822.51'; 

thence S 01°53'53" E a distance of 1592.76'; 

thence N 87°32'13" E a distance of 2787.76'; 

thence N 00°37'17" W a distance of 1565.92'to the point of beginning; 

having an area of 4429359.4 square feet, 101.684 acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.2 Exhibit B  

Index Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.3 Exhibit C 

Pre-Mining and Mining Plan Map  

of Affected Lands 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







6.4.4 Exhibit D 

 Mining Plan 
The Wertz Pit is a new site that will span 101.684 acres.  The target gravel source is located 

beneath limited topsoil and overburden.  The primary commodities are sand and gravel.  

Incidental materials not used for construction material will be used to reconstruct the pit floor 

and lessen the pit slopes.  A portable asphalt or concrete batch plant may be onsite as projects 

warrant.  The site is made up of Cascajo soils and gravelly land, as well as Kimera loam.   

 Cascajo soils and gravelly lad are excessively drained alluvium.  Depth to water table is 

more than 80 inches. 

 The Kimera series consists of very deep, well drained soils that formed in alluvium and 

eolian deposits derived from sedimentary rock. Kimera soils are on plains, interfluves, ridges, 

fans, and hills. Slopes range from 0 to 9 percent. 

The life of the proposed operation is speculative due to fragile economic conditions in 

the construction industry.  If economic demands remain low and extraction is limited to 70.000 

tons per year, approximately six acres per year would be mined.  At this rate, the life of the 

mine would extend to approximately 8 years.  The access road is currently 30’ wide and will not 

need any improvements.  All interior roads will be reclaimed after mining is complete. 

 Mining will proceed from the southeastern corner of the pit and will move north and 

west.  Extracted material will be moved to the processing area that is anticipated to be located 

in the northeastern portion of the pit denoted on the map.  Earthmoving will be accomplished 

using bulldozers, front end loaders and/or scrapers depending on the depth of plant growth 

material and overburden.  All plant growth material and topsoil will be salvaged and stockpiled 

for reclamation use.  Front end loaders will be used for mining at the site.  These stockpiles will 

be located at the perimeter of the site and posted as reclamation topsoil.  Waste rock and 

overburden will be stockpiled and used to rebuild the pit floor and slopes during reclamation.  

Overburden perimeter stormwater diversion berms will be constructed as excavation and 

reclamation progresses.   

 Mining will develop a gravel pit to a depth of approximately 23 feet.  No groundwater is 

expected to be encountered during excavation and mining; therefore, no impact to the 

hydrologic balance is anticipated.  No acid or toxic producing materials will be exposed during 

mining.  No explosives will be used in conjunction with mining or reclamation.  Mining will go to 

just outside the 25-foot guidance that was given in the engineer’s report.  Lamar Light and 

Power asked that an engineer give direction on how mining should occur around their 

structures in lieu of a Structure agreement.  This report is attached for your review. 



 The proposed mining operation will consist of an access road from the northeast of the 

site.  Aggregate will be processed and sized using a crusher and screens.  All interior haul roads 

will be temporary and will be reclaimed after the mining has been completed.  It is estimated 

that the life of the pit is 8-10 years and is dependent upon demand. 

 Comments were solicited from the Colorado State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO).  

This is attached for your review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.5 Exhibit E 

Reclamation Plan 
 Reclamation to rangeland will occur following mining at the site.  As topsoil and waste 

rock and overburden are removed from the working face, they will be stockpiled for future 

reclamation use.  Throughout mining, slopes will be maintained at a 3H:1V minimum.  Waste 

rock and overburden will be placed on the pit floor as quantity allows.  Four to six inches of 

topsoil will be replaced on affected surfaces.  If necessary, surfaces will be roughened prior to 

seeding.   

 All Rite Paving and Redi Mix will use the below.  The seed will be drilled at ¼” to ½” in 

depth and straw mulch will be crimped in.   

 

All mining structures, including interior haul roads and stormwater diversion structures, 

will be reclaimed following all mining operations.  All buildings are portable control vans. 

 Throughout the mining area, salvageable surface material will be removed and 

stockpiled for use in final reclamation.  Upon commencement of reclamation, the area will be 

monitored for noxious weeds.  All Rite Paving and Redi Mix will implement appropriate 

methods to manage weed growth and will work with Prowers County Weed Control Program 

for recommendations in the event noxious weeds develop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.6 Exhibit F 

Reclamation Plan Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





6.4.7 Exhibit G 

Water Information 
 Mining is expected to have no impact on the prevailing hydrologic balance.  

Groundwater will not be exposed, and stormwater will not leave the site.  The site will not 

discharge stormwater or process water drainage.   

 According to the Division of Water Resources HydroBase Data Viewer, groundwater 

near the site is anticipated to be approximately 255 feet in depth (see below).  The mining 

operation will only mine to a depth of 23 feet.   

 Runoff occurs as overland flow to natural drainage ravines in the vicinity.  Stormwater 

best management practices such as waddles, straw bales, and perimeter berms will be placed 

to effectively manage stormwater.  Historic flow will be maintained during mining. 

 Consumptive use of water may occur as dust suppression on the haul road and affected 

areas.  All Rite Paving and Redi Mix will purchase the necessary volume of water from an 

appropriate supplier.  The amount required for this is undetermined at this time. 

 The permittee will complete a stormwater management plan.  Diversionary berms and 

impoundments will be constructed as recommended by the Water Quality Division. 

 

 

 



6.4.8 Exhibit H 

Wildlife Information 
 The property is used for grazing. And will be returned to rangeland during reclamation.  

Colorado Parks and Wildlife was contacted for comment.  The response letter is attached for 

review.  It states that the site should have a pre-construction/pre-disturbance survey.  All Rite 

Paving and Redi Mix will conduct the survey prior to any activities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





6.4.9 Exhibit I 

Soils Information 
 A Custom Soil Resource Report for Bent County, specific to this site, is attached for 

review.  The site is made up of Cascajo soils and gravelly land, as well as Kimera loam.   

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

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.10 Exhibit J 

Vegetation Information 
 The Wertz Pit is characterized by grazing land.  Native vegetation includes blue grama, 

needleandthread, galleta, sand dropseed, winterfat, cactus, yucca, sagebrush and juniper.  The 

site cover is at approximately 80% with an average height of 6-12”.  The carrying capacity of the 

property is approximately 15 acres per head of cattle for year-round grazing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6.4.11 Exhibit K 

Climate 
 Climate data was pulled from the Colorado State website for the Bent County area.  The 

data is attached for review.



 

 

 

 



6.4.12 Exhibit L 

Reclamation Costs 
 Reclamation cost estimates were calculated on a per acre basis and applied to maximum 

active mining area of 101.684 acres.   

 

Direct Tasks Unit Quantity Cost Total Cost 
Placing Topsoil/Fines     

Bull Dozer Hours 0.33 $145.00 $47.85 

Loader Hours 0.33 $145.00 $47.85 

Seeding     

Broadcasting Hours 0.33 $300.00 $99.00 

Seed Mix Acre 1 $350.00 $350.00 

Mulch Acre 1 $187.50 $187.50 

Tracking seed/mulch     

Dozer Hours 0.33 $154.00 $50.82 

Area Reclaimed Acre 102  $35,235.90 

Mobilization Fee Hours 1 $100 $100 

Indirect Tasks     

Liability Insurance   0.0155 $660.61 

Performance Bond   0.015 $639.30 

Profit   0.1 $4,261.98 

Job Superintendent Hours 20 $88.00 $1,760.00 

Miscellaneous Indirect   0.0925 $7,321.89 

Total Bond    $49,020.30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.13 Exhibit M 

Other Permits and Licenses 

• All Rite Paving and Redi Mix has applied for a Bent County Special Use Permit.   

• Air Permit Emissions Notice (APEN) to the Colorado Department of Public Health 

and Environment’s Air Pollution Control Division,  

• Stormwater Discharge Permit – Colorado Department of Public Health and 

Environment’s Water Quality Control Division 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.14 Exhibit N 

Source of Legal Right to Enter 
 Attached is the lease agreement for this site.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.15 Exhibit O 

Owner of Record of Affected Land 

Surface Area and Substance to be Mined 

 Attached is the deed for this property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





6.4.16 Exhibit P 

Municipalities Within Two Miles 
 There are no towns within two miles of the proposed mining operation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.17 Exhibit Q 

Proof of Mailing Notices to Board of County 

Commissioners and Soil Conservation District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6.4.18 Exhibit R 

Proof of Filing with County Clerk and Recorder  
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6.4.14 Exhibit S 

Permanent Man-made Structures 
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
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Thanks,

 

 

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

 

From: Houssin Hourieh <hhourieh@lamarlp.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2022 11:12 AM 
To: Jodi Schreiber <jodi@arycorp.com> 
Subject: RE: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit

 

WARNING: The sender of this email could not be validated and may not match the person in the "From" field.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Hi Jodi,

 

I checked with our attorney on the status. He asked what if we go with option B on your request, because that’s what he
recommended on another similar situation with Prowers Aggregates Mining near our lines east of Lamar.

 

Thanks,

Houssin
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https://www.google.com/maps/search/839+Mackenzie+Ave.,+Canon+City,+CO+81212+%0D%0A+Office+(719?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/839+Mackenzie+Ave.,+Canon+City,+CO+81212+%0D%0A+Office+(719?entry=gmail&source=g
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From: Jodi Schreiber [mailto:jodi@arycorp.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2022 7:13 AM 
To: 'Houssin Hourieh' <hhourieh@lamarlp.com> 
Subject: RE: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit

 

Good morning, Houssin.

 

I thought I would send over a quick email an check on the status of this agreement.  Is there anything I can provide to
help with this request?

 

Thank you for your time and help on this!

 

 

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
Sent: Wednesday, March 9, 2022 8:40 AM 
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

 

Thank you, Jodi. I have forwarded your Agreement to our attorney for his review.

 

Houssin

 

mailto:jodi@arycorp.com
mailto:hhourieh@lamarlp.com
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From: Jodi Schreiber [mailto:jodi@arycorp.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2022 7:43 AM 
To: 'Houssin Hourieh' <hhourieh@lamarlp.com> 
Subject: RE: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit

 

Good morning, Houssin.

 

Attached is the updated structure agreement.  Please let me know if you need anything further.

 

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
Sent: Monday, March 7, 2022 3:08 PM 
To: Jodi Schreiber <jodi@arycorp.com> 
Subject: FW: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit

 

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

 

I was waiting to get this agreement from you. For some reason I didn’t get it till today. Looking at it, please add “Clayton
Pit on Rd JJ between Rd 22 and 23, Bent County” under the Certification Section of the form, and have it notarized then I
will take it to our board for approval.

 

Thanks,

Houssin

 

 

From: Jodi Schreiber [mailto:jodi@arycorp.com]  
Sent: Monday, March 07, 2022 1:56 PM 
To: Houssin Hourieh <hhourieh@lamarlp.com> 
Subject: Structure Agreement - Clayton Pit

 

Good afternoon, Houssin.

 

I just wanted to check in on the status of the agreement I sent over.  Have you had a chance to review it?  Are there any
questions I can help answer? 

Thank you for your time and let me know if I can help in any way.

 

 

 

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
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